
 
 

  
County Commission 

400 East Locust Street, Room 201 

 Union, MO 63084 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

http://www.franklinmo.org/ 

 
 

Tuesday, October 8, 2019 10:00 AM Commission Chambers 

Opening 
  

I. Call to Order   

 
Attendee Name Present Absent Late Arrived 
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker     

First District Commissioner Todd Boland     
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson     

 

II. Minutes Approval 
1. Thursday, September 19, 2019 
2. Thursday, September 26, 2019 
3. Thursday, September 26, 2019 
4. Monday, September 30, 2019 
5. Tuesday, October 1, 2019 
6. Thursday, October 3, 2019 
7. Thursday, October 3, 2019 
 

III. Public Request for Discussion/Action 
 

IV. Action Items 
 

a. Commission Order 2019-414 Proclamation – Domestic Violence Awareness Month   
 

b. Commission Order 2019-415 In the Matter of Amending Section 301.010 of the Franklin County 
Traffic Code Pertaining to Setting and Lowering Speed Limits on County Roads 

 
c. Commission Order 2019-416 In the Matter of Reporting and Releasing Unclaimed Property 

 
d. Commission Order 2019-417 In the Matter of Removing a Certain Parcel from the County 

Collector’s Delinquent List and Removed from the County Tax Roll 
 

e. Commission Order 2019-418 In the Matter of Appointment to the Franklin County Planning and 
Zoning Commission 

 
f. Commission Order 2019-419 In the Matter of Approving and Authorizing Acceptance of a Grant 

for the Blueprint for Roadway Safety Campaign 
 

g. Commission Order 2019-420 In the Matter of Authorizing the Purchase of Certain Real Estate 
Consisting of 120 Acres Located in Washington County, Missouri 

 
County Commission AGENDA Page 1 October 8, 2019 

http://www.franklinmo.org/


 
 

 
 

h. Commission Order 2019-421 In the Matter of Awarding Bid for the Storm Sewer Installation on 
Old Highway 100 Project in Franklin County Missouri 

 
i. Commission Order 2019-422 In the Matter of Awarding the Bid for the Schoeneberg Road 

Bridge Replacement in Franklin County, Missouri 
 

j. Commission Order 2019-423 In the Matter of Authorizing the Purchase of an Excavator for the 
Franklin County Highway Department 

 
k. Commission Order 2019-424 In the Matter of Approving a License Agreement with NovaStor for 

Backup Server Software 
 

l. Commission Order 2019-425 In the Matter of Awarding the Bid for Processing Annual Tax 
Statements and Receipts 

 
m. Commission Order 2019-426 In the Matter of Approving a Professional Services Agreement with 

Kronos for Human Resources and Payroll Processing Software 
 

n. Commission Order 2019-427 In the Matter of Approving the Consent Agenda and all the Items 
Listed Thereon 

 
o. Commission Order 2019-428 In the Matter of Approving and Authorizing Execution of an 

Intergovernmental Agreement between the County of Franklin and the City of Union for the Cost 
Share of a Portion of the Highway 47 Project 

 
V. Discussion Items and Reports 

 
A. Elected Official and Departmental Reports (as needed) 

 
B. Commission Discussion 

 
VI. Adjournment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County Commission AGENDA Page 2 October 8, 2019 



 
 

  
County Commission 

400 East Locust Street, Room 201 

 Union, MO 63084 

Public Hearing 

Minutes 

http://www.franklinmo.org/ 

 
 

Thursday, September 26, 2019 1:00 PM Commission Chambers 

Opening 
  

I. Call to Order   

 
Attendee Name Present 
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker  
First District Commissioner Todd Boland  
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson  
Mark Piontek, County Counselor  
Angela Gibson, Executive Assistant  

 
 

II. Public Hearing for Speed Limits being Set and Lowered 
 
The hearing was held and no public appeared. Nothing further to discuss. 
 

 
III. Adjournment 
  

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    

First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
 Motion to adjourn. Meeting adjourned at 1:01 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County Commission Page 1 October 3, 2019 

http://www.franklinmo.org/


 
 

  
County Commission 

400 East Locust Street, Room 201 

 Union, MO 63084 

Public Hearing 

Minutes 

http://www.franklinmo.org/ 

 
 

Thursday, September 26, 2019 1:00 PM Commission Chambers 

Opening 
  

I. Call to Order   

 
Attendee Name Present 
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker  
First District Commissioner Todd Boland  
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson  
Mark Piontek, County Counselor  
Angela Gibson, Executive Assistant  

 
 

II. Public Hearing for Speed Limits being Set and Lowered 
 
The hearing was held and no public appeared. Nothing further to discuss. 
 

 
III. Adjournment 
  

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    

First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
 Motion to adjourn. Meeting adjourned at 1:01 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County Commission Page 1 October 3, 2019 

http://www.franklinmo.org/


 
 

 

County Commission 400 East Locust Street, Room 201 
 Union, MO 63084 

Minutes 
http://www.franklinmo.org/ 

 
Angela Gibson 

Thursday, September 26, 
2019 

1:15 PM Commission Conf. Room 

 
 

I. Call to Order 
Attendee Name Present 

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker  

First District Commissioner Todd Boland  
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson  

Angela Gibson, Executive Assistant  

Mark Piontek, County Counselor  

Abe Cook, EMA Director  

Debbie Aholt, County Treasurer  

Jeanine Stevens, Deputy County Clerk  

Tim Baker, County Clerk  

Aaron Aitch, EMA  

Scottie Eagan, P&Z Director  

  
 

II. Commission Workshop Meeting 
 
a. Discuss 911 Landline Tax 

-Discussion was held on the status of the telephone service provider’s failure to respond to 
correspondence. County Counselor advised Jeanine Stevens, Deputy Clerk, to resend letters to 
providers notifying them of their non-compliant status.  
 

b. Planning and Zoning discussed with the Commission the outcome of the rezoning meeting that took 
place on September 19, 2019. Planning and Zoning has scheduled for further discussion with 
Planning and Zoning Board Members on October 7, 2019 at 3:00 p.m. 

 
c. Discussion was held on the plan to sell 30 acres that Franklin County and the City of Washington 

jointly own.  
 

III. Adjournment 
 
Nothing further to discuss. Meeting adjourned at 2:30 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County Commission Page 1  

http://www.franklinmo.org/


 County Commission 400 East Locust Street, Room 201 
 Union, MO 63084 

Elected Officials and 
Department Head Meeting 

Agenda 

http://www.franklinmo.org/ 

 
Angela Gibson 

Monday, September 30, 2019 1:00 PM Training Rm 207 

 
 

I. Call to Order 
Attendee Name Present 
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker  
Dave Hinson, 2nd District Commissioner  

Todd Boland, 1ST District Commissioner  

Angie Hittson, Health Dept. Director  

Lauren Drumm, HR Director  

Ann Struttmann, Purchasing Director  

Bill Placht, Building Department Director  

Abe Cook, EMA Director  

Doug Trentmann, Collector  

Tony Henry, Maintenance Director  

Mary Jo Straatmann, Public Administrator  
Tammy Vemmer, Auditor  

Debbie Aholt, Treasurer  
Tim Baker, County Clerk  
Scottie Eagan, P&Z Director  
Mark Piontek, County Counselor  

 
II. Elected Officials and Department Heads Monthly Discussion 

All attending elected officials and department heads provided an update of their respective departments. 
 

III. Adjournment 
Meeting adjourned at 1:30 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

County Commission MINUTES Page1 September 30, 2019 

http://www.franklinmo.org/


 
 

  
County Commission 

400 East Locust Street, Room 201 

 Union, MO 63084 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

http://www.franklinmo.org/ 

 
 

Tuesday, October 1, 2019 10:00 AM Commission Chambers 

Opening 
  

I. Call to Order   

 
Attendee Name Present Absent Late Arrived 

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker     

First District Commissioner Todd Boland     

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson     

Angela Gibson, Executive Assistant     

Mark Piontek, County Counselor     

Cpl. Pingelton     

Spencer, Missourian     

Tim Baker, County Clerk     

Doug Trentmann, County Collector     

Tony Henry, Maintenance Director     

Lauren Drumm, HR Director     

Tammy Vemmer, Auditor     

Scottie Eagan, Planning and Zoning Director     

Tim Lindemeyer, Sheriff’s Dept.     

 

II. Minutes Approval 
1. Tuesday, September 24, 2019 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    

First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
III. Public Request for Discussion/Action 

 
IV. Action Items 

a. Commission Order 2019-408 In the Matter of Approving and Authorizing Execution of the Plan of 
Operations with the State of Missouri Department of Public Safety for the Multi-County Narcotics and 
Violent Crimes Enforcement Unit  

    
Voter Name Motion Second Aye 

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    

First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
 

County Commission MINUTES Page 1 October 1, 2019 

http://www.franklinmo.org/


 
 

b. Commission Order 2019-409 In the Matter of Adjustment of Tax Charges on Personal Property Tax Book 
for the Year 2018 & Prior to Doug Trentmann, Collector of Revenue for Franklin County 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    

First District Commissioner Todd Boland    
 

c. Commission Order 2019-410 In the Matter of Approving and Authorizing Execution of a Permanent 
Easement Deed 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    

First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
d. Commission Order 2019-411 In the Matter of Accepting and Approving the Quote from Athena 

Engineering and Construction, LLC to Provide Hauling Services for the Schubert Road Project 
Voter Name Motion Second Aye 

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    

First District Commissioner Todd Boland    
 

e. Commission Order 2019-412 In the Matter of Finding Certain Equipment as Surplus to the Needs of 
Franklin County and Further Authorizing the Disposal of Such 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    

First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
f. Commission Order 2019-413 In the Matter of Approving the Consent Agenda and all the Items Listed 

Thereon  
Voter Name Motion Second Aye 

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    
First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
V. Discussion Items and Reports 

 
A. Elected Official and Departmental Reports (as needed) 

 
B. Commission Discussion 

 
Presiding Commissioner Brinker states that PHMP, Proactive Health Management Plan, representatives 
are at Franklin County this week to provide information to County employees on the plan that is part of their 
employee benefit package. Brinker publically thanks Lauren Drumm, HR Director, for coordinating the 
representatives at various locations in the county, including the Sheriff’s Department, Highway Department 
sheds and the Government Center, to allow employee convenience to meet with the representatives.  
Brinker adds that PHMP provides several benefits for the County, employees and taxpayers. The benefits 
are a healthier workforce with benefits of telemedicine and healthy lifestyle coaches made available, putting 
more money in our valued employees pockets, and saving FICA taxes on said employees so ultimately 
taxpayers are paying less overall. All Elected officials and department heads should encourage 
participation and save taxpayers money and improve the lives of our valued employees. 

 
County Commission MINUTES Page 2 October 1, 2019 



 
 

 
 
VI. Adjournment 

 
Motion to adjourn meeting at 10:07 a.m. 
 

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    

First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
County Commission MINUTES Page 3 October 1, 2019 



 
 

  
County Commission 

400 East Locust Street, Room 201 

 Union, MO 63084 

Public Hearing 

Minutes 

http://www.franklinmo.org/ 

 
 

Thursday, October 3, 2019 1:00 PM Commission Chambers 

Opening 
  

I. Call to Order   

 
Attendee Name Present 
Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker  
First District Commissioner Todd Boland  
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson  
Mark Piontek, County Counselor  
Angela Gibson, Executive Assistant  

 
 

II. Public Hearing for Speed Limits being Set and Lowered 
 
The hearing was held and no public appeared. Nothing further to discuss. 
 

 
III. Adjournment 
  

Voter Name Motion Second Aye 
Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson    

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker    

First District Commissioner Todd Boland    

 
 Motion to adjourn. Meeting adjourned at 1:01 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County Commission Page 1 October 3, 2019 

http://www.franklinmo.org/


 
 

 

County Commission 400 East Locust Street, Room 201 
 Union, MO 63084 

Working Session 

Minutes 

http://www.franklinmo.org/ 

 
Angela Gibson 

 

Thursday, October 3, 2019 

1:15 PM 
      1:30 PM 
      2:00 PM 

Commission Conf. Room 

 

 
 

I. Call to Order 
Attendee Name Present Arrived/Left 

Presiding Commissioner Tim Brinker   

First District Commissioner Todd Boland   

Second District Commissioner Dave Hinson   

Angela Gibson, Executive Assistant   

Mark Piontek, County Counselor  Left meeting at 1:30 

Tammy Vemmer, Auditor  Arrived at 1:45 

Debbie Aholt, Treasurer   

 
II. 1:15 – 1:30 Commission Budget Review Meeting with Auditor 

 
At 1:10 p.m. Commissioners began their meeting. There were insurance increases for this budget due to 
general departmental increases across the board. A projector for the Commission Chambers has been 
budgeted in uncapitalized equipment. 
 

III. 1:30 – 1:45 Budget Meeting with Auditor 
 
 At 1:30 PM discussion was held on Auditor’s budget.  There were basically no changes. Tammy 
 Vemmer brought up future plans for her office and eventually hiring a part-time person but it  was not 
 included in her 2020 budget proposal. 
 

IV. 1:45 – 2:00 Budget Meeting with Treasurer 
 
 The budget meeting with Treasurer, Debbie Aholt, began early, at 1:45 p.m., originally scheduled for 
 2:00 p.m. The Treasurer would like to hire the Deputy Treasurer, Darla Unerstall, as a full-time 
 employee.  The Commissioners asked the  Treasurer to provide them with the figures to include any 
 benefits that would involve a change from part-time to a full-time employee. A meeting will be held in 
 the near future to discuss these figures.  
 

V. Adjournment 
 
Having no further business meeting was adjourned at 2:00 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County Commission Page 1  

http://www.franklinmo.org/


Commission Order No. 2019-414 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, October 8, 2019 
County of Franklin  Proclamation 
 

Commission Order 2019-414  

ss. 

 
PROCLAMATION 

 
WHEREAS, in 2019, the Franklin County Prosecutor’s office has received 708 cases of domestic violence to 
date and of these cases, 382 charges were issued.  Each victim is provided services whether or not that report is 
charged, and is given a referral to ALIVE.  The Prosecutor’s office to date has received 8,729 cases, making 
over 8% of the cases received to date domestic violence crimes.  ALIVE offers the only 24-hr hotline in 
Franklin County for victims to call should they need assistance.  Critical support services include short-term 
emergency shelter, counseling for adults and children, court advocacy, case management, emergency 
transportation, and education in our communities and schools. 
 
WHEREAS, last year Missouri domestic violence programs provided services to more than 35,983       adults, 
youth and children, including providing services to more than 2,000 victims in a single day in 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, more than 30,826 Missouri victims of domestic violence in 2018 were unable to receive 
immediate safe shelter and services because domestic violence programs were stretched beyond available 
resources and capacity to serve all families in need; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Missouri State Highway Patrol recorded 45,569 domestic violence incidents; and   
 
WHEREAS, domestic violence is not confined to any specific group or people, but affects people of all races, 
backgrounds, economic levels, education levels, family structures, ages and religions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the crime of domestic violence violates members of our community’s safety, dignity, security and 
humanity in the form of physical, emotional, sexual, psychological and economic abuse; and  
 
WHEREAS, advocates, professionals, volunteers and community members concerned with domestic violence 
will devote the month of October to raising awareness about the causes, interventions and prevention of this 
devastating crime; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the County Commission of Franklin County, Missouri does hereby proclaim the month 
of October as;    DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS MONTH 

 
And reaffirm this County’s commitment to ending domestic violence in our community. 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 



Commission Order No. 2019-415 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, October 8, 2019 
County of Franklin  
 

Commission Order 2019-415 Page 1 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF AMENDING  
SECTION 304.010 OF THE FRANKLIN 
COUNTY TRAFFIC CODE PERTAINING TO 
SETTING AND LOWERING SPEED LIMITS  
ON COUNTY ROADS 
 
WHEREAS, Section 304.130 RSMO empowers Franklin County, as a first class county, to adopt, by order or ordinance, 
regulations to control vehicular traffic upon the public roads and highways in the unincorporated territory of such county 
for the purpose of promoting public safety, health and general welfare and to protect life and property; and 
 
WHEREAS, before the adoption of such lowering or setting speed limits, the county commission held three public 
hearings and published Notice of Public Hearing in two newspapers circulating within the county, and notice of such 
hearings were posted at least fifteen (15) days in advance of such hearings in four conspicuous places in the county; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Notice of Public Hearing to lower and set certain speed limits was published in the Sullivan Independent 
News in the August 28, 2019 edition and in the Washington Missourian in the August 31, 2019 edition; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Notices of Public Hearings were posted in the following locations; the Union City Hall, the Franklin County 
Government Center lobby, the Union Scenic Regional Library, and the Franklin County Historic Courthouse; and 
 
WHEREAS, three public hearings were held before the County Commission of the County of Franklin, Missouri, in the 
Franklin County Government Center, Second Floor, 400 E. Locust Street, Union, Missouri, on September 19, 2019 at 1:00 
p.m., September 26, 2019 at 1:00 p.m., and October 3, 2019 at 1:00 p.m.  
 
WHEREAS, after due diligence was performed consistent with RSMo 304.130 Franklin County has recommended the 
revised Schedule 2 and Schedule 3, attached hereto, to be enforced. 
  
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, by the County Commission of Franklin County that the Franklin County Traffic Code, 
Section 304.010 be amended and Schedule 2 – Speed Limits Being Lowered and Schedule 3 – Speed Limits Being Set 
be enforced on the specified public roadways in the unincorporated portions of Franklin County. 
  
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that a copy of this Order is to be provided to Laurie Ruether, Clerk of the Municipal Court; 
Billy Eckelkamp, Municipal Court Prosecutor; Steven Pelton, Franklin County Sheriff; and Ron Williams, Highway 
Administrator. 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
            Commissioner of 1st District 
 
            Commissioner of 2nd District 



SCHEDULE 2 - SPEED LIMITS BEING LOWERED

FRANKLIN COUNTY TRAFFIC CODE (revised 10/8/2019)

ROAD NAME SP
EE

D
 L

IM
IT

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D

ADAMS ST (LABADIE) 25 20

ADLER, from Hwy O to the end of County Maintenance 25 20

AMERICAN INN, from Highway O to Highway AT 35 30

BLANKENSHIP LN,from Schubert Road to end of County Maintenance 25 20

BRUSH CREEK-Highway TT To Mill Hill 35 30

BUTH LN, for the entire length from Highway 50 to the end of County Maintenance 35 30

CALVEY AVE (Catawissa) 25 20

COUNTRY CLUB LN 35 30

EAST DENMARK N of Hwy 50 only 35 30

FIDDLE CREEK 35 30

FIDDLE CREEK SPUR 35 30

FIRST ST (Catawissa) 25 20

FRISCO SPUR 25 20

GRAND AVE (Catawissa) 25 20

HICKORY STREET (St. Clair) 25 20

HIGH (in the unincorporated area of Moselle, MO) 25 20

HOGAN (WEST) 30 20

HOLY FAMILY CHURCH RD 40 30

JEFFERSON ST (Robertsville) 25 20

JOHNSON LANE (Robertsville) 25 20

JONES LN, Between Hwy 100 and St. John's Road 40 30

KNOLLCREST DRIVE 40 30

LEFFINGWELL (Stanton) 30 20

LEFLER LN 40 30

LEROY AVE (Catawissa) 25 20

MARJORIE AVE (Catawissa) 25 20

MASSEY FORD-Excluding 75 Ft North of Jason Louis Lane Dr C ontinuing 200 Ft South Of Jason 

Louis Lane Dr 35 30

MCKISSOCK AVE (Catawissa) 25 20

MERAMEC AVE (Gray Summit) 25 20

MIRAMIGUOA DR 35 30

NORTH SHORE DR (Robertsville) 25 20

OLD STATE-HWY 50 TO HWY ZZ 40 30

PATTON DR (Catawissa) 25 20

POWELL AVE (Labadie) 30 20

RIVER BEND 35 30

RONNIE LN (Catawissa) 25 20

SECOND ST (Labadie) 30 20

SECOND ST (Robertsville) 25 20

SOUTH MONTGOMERY 40 30

SOUTH SECOND ST (Robertsville) 25 20

SOUTH THIRD (Robertsville) 25 20

STRANGHOERNER 40 30

SUMMIT AVE (Catawissa) 25 20

SUMMIT VIEW 25 20

TOELKE 40 30

WASHINGTON ST (Labadie) 30 20

WASHINGTON ST (Robertsville) 25 20

WEST WHISKEY CREEK 40 30

WESTWOOD DR (Catawissa) 25 20

WINDY VALLEY LN 40 30

WOODS CREEK 35 30



SCHEDULE 3 - SPEED LIMITS BEING SET 

FRANKLIN COUNTY TRAFFIC CODE (revised 10/8/2019)

NAME A
C

TI
O

N
/I

N
FO

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D

CARTWRIGHT LANE SET 20

OLD GRAY SUMMIT SPUR SET 20

OLD HWY 100 (W) SET 30



Commission Order No. 2019-416 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, October 8, 2019 
County of Franklin  
 

Commission Order 2019-416 Page 1 

ss. 

 
 
IN THE MATTER OF REPORTING 
AND RELEASING UNCLAIMED 
PROPERTY 
 
WHEREAS, prior hereto ZLS Development deposited with the Franklin County Building Department the sum of 
$1,050.00 in the form of a check on September 19, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Franklin County Building Department has exhausted all means of contact and ZLS 
Development has failed to retrieve such property or do anything else to acknowledge its existence; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Franklin County Building Department to forward such property to the State 
Treasurer’s Office as unclaimed property. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the County Commission of Franklin County that the aforesaid property is 
hereby declared to be unclaimed property within the meaning of Missouri law. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Presiding Commissioner is authorized to execute the necessary 
documents so that the property can be turned over to the State Treasurer. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Franklin County Building Department take all necessary actions to 
forward such property to the State Treasurer’s Office. 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
            Commissioner of 1st District 
 
            Commissioner of 2nd District 



Commission Order No. 2019-417 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, October 8, 2019 
County of Franklin  
 

Commission Order 2019-417 Page 1 

ss. 

 
IN THE MATTER OF REMOVING  
A CERTAIN PARCEL FROM THE  
COUNTY COLLECTOR’S DELINQUENT LIST  
AND REMOVED FROM THE COUNTY TAX ROLL 
 
WHEREAS, Article X, Section 6, Subsection 1 of the Missouri Constitution exempts from taxation all 
property, real and personal, not held for private or corporate profit and used exclusively for purposes 
purely charitable, may be exempted from taxation by general law; and 

WHEREAS, Section 137.110 RSMo exempts from taxation for state, county or local purposes all 
property, real and personal, actually and regularly used exclusively for purposes purely charitable and 
not held for private or corporate profit; and  

WHEREAS, the following real property that was previously assessed for taxes is held by Chesterfield 
Hockey Association, Inc. a Missouri not for profit corporation for purposes purely charitable and not 
held for private or corporate profit; and  

WHEREAS, Section 140.040 RSMo. authorizes the County Commission to correct the delinquent list 
“by the best means in their power”. 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, that the following real property at the address below and listed by 
parcel number is ordered removed from the delinquent list and removed from the tax rolls: 

1) 460 Indian Warpath Drive, Pacific, Missouri, Parcel Number19-2-10.0-0-027-023.000.  

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that a copy of this Order shall be provided to Tom Copeland, County 
Assessor, Doug Trentmann, County Collector, and Tim Baker, County Clerk. 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
            Commissioner of 1st District 
 
            Commissioner of 2nd District 
 
 
 



Commission Order No. 2019-418 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, October 8, 2019 
County of Franklin  
 

Commission Order 2019-418 Page 1 

ss. 

 
 
IN THE MATTER OF APPOINTMENT 
TO THE FRANKLIN COUNTY 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
WHEREAS, Jay Schultehenrich was serving as a member of Central Township for the Franklin County 
Planning and Zoning Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, Jay Schultehenich notified the Planning and Zoning Department of his resignation from the 
Board, effective July 19, 2019; and  
 
WHEREAS, Dennis Hartmann expressed interest in serving as a full time member representing Central 
Township. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that Dennis Hartmann is hereby appointed as a full time member of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission whose term will begin October 8, 2019 and will expire October 8, 2023. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Tim Baker, Clerk of the County Commission, deliver a copy of this order 
to Dennis Hartmann at the below listed address and to Scottie Eagan, Franklin County Planning Director. 

Dennis Hartmann 
598 Wing Drive 

St. Clair, MO 63077 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
            Commissioner of 1st District 
 
            Commissioner of 2nd District 
 
 
 



Commission Order No. 2019-419 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, October 8, 2019 
County of Franklin Contract/Agreements 
 

Commission Order 2019-419 Page 1 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING AND 
AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF A 
GRANT FOR THE BLUEPRINT 
FOR ROADWAY SAFETY CAMPAIGN 
 
WHEREAS, the Franklin County Sheriff’s Department desires to apply and enter into a contract with Missouri 
Highways and Transportation Commission to participate in the Missouri’s Blueprint – A Partnership Toward 
Zero Deaths Roadway Safety Campaign; and  
 
WHEREAS, as a condition of participating in such campaign it is necessary that Franklin County submit an 
electronic application to the Missouri Department of Transportation Division, a copy of which is attached 
hereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, the award to Franklin County is for a maximum of $7,500.00 to be used by the Franklin County 
Sheriff’s Department for the purposes set forth in the above referenced agreement. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the Franklin County Commission that the grant award for the period 
September 2019 through May 2020 is hereby accepted. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the “Program Agreement” is hereby approved and that Presiding 
Commissioner, Tim Brinker, is authorized to execute said Agreement by electronic signature on behalf of 
Franklin County. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Order and a copy of the fully executed Agreement be provided 
to the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission; Lt. Michael Richardson, Sheriff’s Office; Tammy 
Vemmer, Auditor; Christa Buchanan; County Clerk’s Office; and to Ann Struttmann, Purchasing Agent. 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 













Commission Order No. 2019-420 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, October 8, 2019 
County of Franklin Contract/Agreements 
 

Commission Order 2019-420 
 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING 
THE PURCHASE OF 
CERTAIN REAL ESTATE CONSISTING 
OF 120 ACRES LOCATED IN WASHINGTON 
COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of Franklin County to purchase said real property consisting of 120 acres, as 
described in Exhibit A attached hereto, from a Washington County Sheriff’s Sale held on October 1, 2019 at 
1:00 p.m. and any and all tower structures located on the premises; and 
 
WHEREAS, Franklin County will purchase said property for the sale price of One Hundred and Eight Thousand 
Dollars ($108,000.00) plus Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) in costs.  
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the purchase of real property located in Washington County from the 
Sheriff’s Sale on October 1, 2019 consisting of 120 acres and any and all tower structures located on the 
premises for the sale price of $108,000.00 and $5,000.00 in costs is hereby approved and that Presiding 
Commissioner is authorized to execute any and all necessary documents on behalf of the County of Franklin 
and such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and 
comply with the intent of this Order, for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the County. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the County shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the County 
are hereby authorized and directed to, take such further action, and execute and deliver such other 
documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the 
intent of this Order. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a fully executed copy of this Order shall be delivered to Mark Piontek, County 
Counselor; and Abe Cook, EMA Director. 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

REAL ESTATE SITUATED IN WASHINGTON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
Tract 1 
A 5.05 acre tract of land being part of the Southeast quarter of the North-west quarter of Section 16, Township 39 
North, Range 1 West, Washington County, Missouri, and being part of a 119.38 acre tract of land as surveyed by Orvis D. 
Lashley for United Farm Agency, said 5.05 acre tract being described as follows: Beginning at the Southwest corner of 
said South-east quarter of the Northwest quarter of Section 16; thence along the West line of said Section 16 North 
0°30'25" West 649.48 feet; thence leaving said West line North 83°58' East 455.94 feet; thence south 13°43' West 
226.85 feet; thence South 25°49'19" West, 131.87 feet; thence South 22°08'31" West 364.09 feet to a point on the 
South line of said Section 16; thence along said South line South 83°58' West 200.32 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
Tract 2 
A tract of land being part of the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 16, Township 39 North, Range 1 
West, Washington County, Missouri, and being part of a 119.38 acre tract of land as surveyed by Orvis D. Lashley for 
United Farm Agency, said 34.53 acre tract being described as follows: Beginning at the Southeast corner of said 
Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 16; thence along the East line of said qr. qr. Section North 0° 30' 
19" West 1,309.82 feet to a point being the Northeast corner of said qr. qr. Section; thence along the North line of said 
qr. qr. Section South 83° 30' 06" West 1,329.18 feet to a point being the Northwest corner of said qr. qr. Section; thence 
along the West line of said qr. qr. Section South 0° 30' 25" East 649.49 feet to a point; thence leaving said West line 
North 83° 58' East 455.94 feet to a point; thence South 13° 43' West 226.85 feet; thence South 25° 49' 19" West 131.87 
feet; thence South 22° 08' 31" West 364.09 feet to a point on the South line of said qr. qr. Section; thence along said 
South line North 83° 58' East 1,127.73 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
Tract 3 
A tract of land being all of the South half of the Northeast Quarter of Section 16, Township 39 North, Range 1 West, 
Washington County, Missouri, and being part of a tract of land 119.38 acres, as surveyed by Orvis D. Lashley for United 
Farm Agency, said tract 79.80 acre tract being described as follows: Beginning at an iron rod being the East Quarter 
corner of said Section 16 North 0° 29' 53" West 1,319.62 feet to an iron pipe, said pipe being South 0° 48' 55" East 
1,345.09 feet from the Northeast corner of said Section 16, thence South 83° 45' 25" West 2,657.23 feet as measured 
along the North line of said South half of the Northeast Quarter of Section 16 to a point; thence South 0° 30' 19" East 
1,309.82 feet to a point on the South line of said Northeast Quarter of Section 16; thence along said South line North 83° 
58' 00" East 2,656.11 feet to the point of beginning. 



Commission Order No. 2019-421 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, October 8, 2019 
County of Franklin Contract/Agreements 
 

Commission Order 2019-421 
 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING BID FOR  
THE STORM SEWER INSTALLATION ON  
OLD HIGHWAY 100 PROJECT 
IN FRANKLIN COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
WHEREAS, a Public Notice to Bidders asking for sealed bids addressed to the Franklin County Purchasing 
Department was published in the Washington Missourian edition on August 30, 2019 for receipt by September 
24, 2019 for the storm sewer installation on Old Highway 100; and 
 
WHEREAS, five (5) bids were received from; KJ Unnerstall Construction, Co., Kelpe Contracting, Inc., Gaehle 
Grading, LLC, Fischer Grading, LLC, and Krupp Construction, Inc.; and 
 
WHEREAS, after due deliberation and consideration, it is the recommendation of the Purchasing Department 
to award the bid to the lowest and most responsive bidder, KJ Unnerstall Construction, Co.; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agreement between Franklin County and KJ Unnerstall Construction, Co. for the installation of 
storm sewer on Old Highway 100, attached hereto, is for the amount of $37,726.00.  
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the bid of $37,726.00 for the storm sewer installation is hereby accepted 
and the Contract Agreement, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein, with KJ Unnerstall 
Construction, Co. is hereby approved and the Presiding Commissioner is authorized to execute any and all 
necessary documents on behalf of the County of Franklin and such other documents, certificates and 
instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Order, for and on 
behalf of and as the act and deed of the County.   
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, that the County shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the County 
are hereby authorized and directed to, take such further action, and execute and deliver such other 
documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the 
intent of this Order.          
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that original Agreement and copy of this Order be provided to Ronald J. Williams, 
Highway Administrator; KJ Unnerstall Construction Company; and Ann Struttmann, Purchasing.  
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 
 

























Commission Order No. 2019-422 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, October 8, 2019 
County of Franklin Contract/Agreements 
 

Commission Order 2019-422 
 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING THE BID FOR  
THE SCHOENEBERG ROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT  
IN FRANKLIN COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
WHEREAS,  a Public Notice to Bidders asking for sealed bids addressed to the Franklin County Purchasing 
Department was published in the Washington Missourian September 4, 2019, edition for receipt by September 
25, 2019 for the replacement of the Schoeneberg Road Bridge; and 
 
WHEREAS, four (4) bids were received from; KJ Unnerstall Construction, Co., Pace Construction, Co., 
Gerhenson Construction Co. Inc., and Koseny-Wagner, Inc.; and 
 
WHEREAS, after due deliberation and consideration, it is the recommendation of the Purchasing Department 
to award the bid to the lowest and most responsive bidder, KJ Unnerstall Construction, Co.; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agreement between Franklin County and KJ Unnerstall Construction, Co. for the replacement 
of the existing Schoeneberg Road Bridge, attached hereto, is for the amount of $108,920.00.  
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the bid of $108,920.00 for the replacement of Schoeneberg Road Bridge is 
hereby awarded to KJ Unnerstall Construction, Co. and the Contract Agreement, attached hereto and 
incorporated by reference herein, with KJ Unnerstall Construction, Co. is hereby approved and the Presiding 
Commissioner is authorized to execute any and all necessary documents on behalf of the County of Franklin 
and such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and 
comply with the intent of this Order, for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the County.   
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, that the County shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the County 
are hereby authorized and directed to, take such further action, and execute and deliver such other 
documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the 
intent of this Order.          
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that an original Agreement and copy of this Order be provided to Ronald J. 
Williams, Highway Administrator; KJ Unnerstall Construction Company; and Ann Struttmann, Purchasing.  
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 
 





































Commission Order No. 2019-423 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, October 8, 2019 
County of Franklin Contract/Agreements 
 

Commission Order 2019-423 
 

ss. 

 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING 
THE PURCHASE OF AN EXCAVATOR  
FOR THE FRANKLIN COUNTY  
HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that the Franklin County Highway Department is in need of an excavator; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, it is not necessary to post or publish the intent to procure said excavator as they are able to 
purchase from The G.W. Van Keppel Company through a MODOT Contract # IFB605C019000427; and 
 
WHEREAS, the price to provide one excavator is $175,283.00 as per the quote attached hereto. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the Franklin County Commission that the proposal submitted by The G.W. 
Van Keppel Company as attached hereto in the total amount $175,283.00 is hereby approved and that Ann 
Struttmann, Purchasing Director, is authorized to sign the sale sheet. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Order be provided to The G.W. Van Keppel Company; Ronald 
Williams, Highway Administrator; Ann Struttmann, Purchasing; and Lynne Maloney, Accounts Payable. 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 
 







































Commission Order No. 2019-424 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, October 8, 2019 
County of Franklin Contract/Agreements 
 

Commission Order 2019-424 
 

ss. 

 
IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING 
A LICENSE AGREEMENT 
WITH NOVASTOR FOR BACKUP 
SERVER SOFTWARE 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that Franklin County is in need of backup storage software to ensure 
electronic data storage is properly protected; and 
 
WHEREAS, NovaStor backup storage software will allow Franklin County to utilize such service on a county-
wide level; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of Franklin County to enter into a License Agreement, attached hereto, with 
NovaStor for an annual fee of $3,375.00. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the Franklin County Commission that the License Agreement with NovaStor 
is hereby approved and that Ann Struttmann, Purchasing Director, is authorized to provide an electronic 
signature on the Agreement. 
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Order be provided to NovaStor; AQM; and Ann Struttmann, 
Purchasing. 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 
 











Commission Order No. 2019-425 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, October 8, 2019 
County of Franklin Contract/Agreements 

Commission Order 2019-425 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING THE 
BID FOR PROCESSING ANNUAL 
TAX STATEMENTS AND RECEIPTS 

WHEREAS, a Public Notice to Bidders asking for sealed bids addressed to the Franklin County Purchasing 
Department was published in the Washington Missourian edition on September 18, 2019 for receipt by October 
2, 2019 for processing annual tax statements and receipts; and 

WHEREAS, two (2) bids were received from Input Technology, Inc. and Midwest Direct; and 

WHEREAS, after due deliberation and consideration, it is the recommendation of the Purchasing Department 
to award the bid to Midwest Direct for the estimated project amount of $22,106.71, excluding postage; and 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the bid of $22,106.71 for processing annual tax statements and receipts is 
hereby accepted and the Presiding Commissioner is authorized to execute any and all necessary documents 
on behalf of the County of Franklin and such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be 
necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Order, for and on behalf of and as the act 
and deed of the County.   

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, that the County shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the County 
are hereby authorized and directed to, take such further action, and execute and deliver such other 
documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the 
intent of this Order.      

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that original Agreement and copy of this Order be provided to Doug Trentmann, 
County Collector; Midwest Direct; and Ann Struttmann, Purchasing.  

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

   Commissioner of 1st District 

   Commissioner of 2nd District 

































































Commission Order No. 2019-426 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, October 8, 2019 
County of Franklin Contract/Agreements 
 

Commission Order 2019-426 
 

ss. 

 
IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING 
A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH KRONOS FOR 
HUMAN RESOURCES AND PAYROLL 
PROCESSING SOFTWARE 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that Franklin County intends to upgrade to a software system that provides 
human resources, time keeping, and payroll processing services to better serve the County and their 
employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, Kronos SaaShr, Inc. provided a quote as reflected on the attached Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is a $10,000.00 one-time set up fee and a minimum average of $4,830.00 per month 
charge; and 
 
WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement is on an annual basis with the option to renew for an additional 3 years.  
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the Franklin County Commission that the Agreement with Kronos is hereby 
approved and the Presiding Commissioner is authorized to execute any and all necessary documents on 
behalf of the County of Franklin and such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary 
or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Order, for and on behalf of and as the act and deed 
of the County.   
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, that the County shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the County 
are hereby authorized and directed to, take such further action, and execute and deliver such other 
documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the 
intent of this Order.          
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Order be provided to Kronos; Lauren Drumm, Human 
Resources Director; Tammy Vemmer, Auditor; Lynne Maloney, Accounts Payable; and Ann Struttmann, 
Purchasing Director. 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 



















Commission Order No. 2019-427 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, October 8, 2019 
County of Franklin Report 
 

Commission Order 2019-427 Page 1 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF  
APPROVING THE CONSENT  
AGENDA AND ALL THE 
ITEMS LISTED THEREON 
 
WHEREAS, in the course of the daily operation of county government certain routine actions are necessary; and 
 
WHEREAS, certain of the routine items referred to above involve either the issuance of licenses, the receipt of funds or 
the authorization of accounts payable and/or abstract of fees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the approval of such routine matters can be approved through the use of a “Consent Agenda”; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to afford a better record of what has been approved through the use of the Consent Agenda it has 
been determined that it would be appropriate to pass a commission order weekly which approves all items contained in 
the Consent Agenda. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the County Commission of Franklin County that the Consent Agenda for October 8, 
2019 addressing the below listed items is hereby approved, to wit: 
 

Fees:   Auditor’s Report – September 2019 
   County Clerk – September 2019 
   Public Administrator – October 2019 
   Health Department – September 2019  
 
Liquor Licenses:   T’s Liquor Lane – October 19, 2019 
   Washington Chamber of Commerce  
    
Other:  
 

______________________________________ 
Presiding Commissioner 

 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 































































































































































































































































































































Commission Order No. 2019-428 
Third Quarter Term 2019 

COMMISSION ORDER 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI Tuesday, October 8, 2019 
County of Franklin Agreement 
 

Commission Order 2019-428 Page 1 

ss. 

IN THE MATTER OF  
APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF FRANKLIN 
AND THE CITY OF UNION FOR THE COST SHARE  
OF A PORTION OF THE HIGHWAY 47 PROJECT  
 
WHEREAS, City of Union, Missouri and the County of Franklin, Missouri desire to enter into an 
Intergovernmental Agreement, as authorized by Section 70.220 RSMo, for the purpose of constructing the 
“Union Expressway” and a “Roundabout” on Missouri Route 47; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Intergovernmental Agreement (“Agreement”), attached hereto, addresses the Cost Share 
provision between the County of Franklin and the City of Union; and 
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the Franklin County Commission that the Intergovernmental Agreement 
between the County of Franklin and the City of Union is hereby approved and the Presiding Commissioner is 
authorized to execute any and all necessary documents on behalf of the County of Franklin and such other 
documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the 
intent of this Order, for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the County.   
 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, that the County shall, and the officials, agents and employees of the County 
are hereby authorized and directed to, take such further action, and execute and deliver such other 
documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the 
intent of this Order.          
 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Order be provided to the City of Union; Tammy Vemmer, 
Auditor; Tim Baker, County Clerk; Ron Williams, Highway Administrator; and Ann Struttmann, Purchasing 
Director. 
 
 

 
______________________________________ 

Presiding Commissioner 
 
              Commissioner of 1st District 
 
              Commissioner of 2nd District 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



12241117.1 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

This Intergovernmental Agreement is entered into this 8TH day of October, 2019 by and between 

the City of Union, Missouri (“City”) and the County of Franklin, Missouri (“County”). 

RECITALS 

Whereas,  Article VI, Section 16 of the Missouri Constitution authorizes any municipality or 

political subdivision of this state to contract and cooperate with other municipalities or political 

subdivisions thereof, for the planning, development, construction, acquisition or operation of any public 

improvement or facility, or for a common service, in the manner provided by law; and 

Whereas, Section 70.220 RSMo. authorizes any municipality or political subdivision of this state 

to contract and cooperate with any other municipality or political subdivision, for the planning, 

development, construction, acquisition or operation of any public improvement or facility, or for a common 

service; provided, that the subject and purposes of any such contract or cooperative action made and entered 

into by such municipality or political subdivision shall be within the scope of the powers of such 

municipality or political subdivision; and 

Whereas, as used in Section 70.220 the term “municipality is defined to mean municipal 

corporations, political corporations, and other public corporations and agencies authorized to exercise 

governmental functions; and 

Whereas, as used in Section 70.220 the term “political subdivision” is defined to mean, inter alia, 

counties and cities;  

Whereas, Missouri law authorizes the City and the County to construct, reconstruct, place, keep, 

renew, maintain, repair, replace, change the type of construction of and inspect public roads within the City 

and County; and 

Whereas, the planning, development, construction, acquisition or operation of a public road is a 

public facility or a common service; and 

Whereas, City is a city of the fourth class duly organized and existing under Missouri law; and 



12241117.1 

Whereas, County) is a county of the first class duly organized and existing under Missouri law. 

Now, Therefore, in consideration of the covenants, conditions and agreements herein contained, 

the parties hereto agree as follows: 

I. PERFORMANCE BY CITY 

 City shall construct the roadway depicted as “Union Expressway” on the attached Exhibit A, incorporated 

herein by reference (the “Roadway”).  Construction of the Roadway shall be in accordance with any 

requirements of the State of Missouri, the County, or the City.   

II.  PERFORMANCE BY COUNTY  

County shall construct the roundabout on Missouri Route 47 depicted on the attached Exhibit A 

(the “Roundabout”).  Construction of the Roundabout shall be in accordance with any requirements of the 

State of Missouri, the County or the City. 

III. COST SHARE 

The estimated cost of construction of the Roadway is $10,209,738.01.  The City will apply for 

STP grant funding in the approximate amount of $8,670,508.  The local share of the Roadway cost will be 

20% or approximately $3,273,332.   

The estimated cost of construction of the Roundabout is $1,978,915.60.  The County will apply 

for a CMAQ grant in the approximate amount of $1,648,640.  The local share of the Roundabout cost will 

be 20% or approximately $329,728.      

The City and County will share on a 50/50 basis the local match requirement for the STP and 

CMAQ grant in the approximate amount of $3,933,335.  Should the actual costs of construction of the 

Roadway and Roundabout be more or less that the estimates contained herein the City and County shall 

share on a 50/50 basis the local match requirements for the STP and CMAQ grant. 

IV. CONTINGENCIES 

The obligation of the City to construction the Roadway and Roundabout shall be void if the STP 

and CMAQ grants are not approved. 



12241117.1 

V. MISCELLANEOUS 

The failure to enforce any particular provision of this Agreement on any particular occasion shall 

not be deemed a waiver by either party of any of its rights hereunder, nor shall it be deemed to be a waiver 

of subsequent or continuing breaches of that provision, unless such waiver be expressed in a writing signed 

by the party to be bound. 

The parties agree that they will each take such steps and execute such documents as may be 

reasonably required by the other party to carry out the intent and purposes of this Agreement. 

In the event any provision or portion of this Agreement is held by any court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such holding will not affect the remainder hereof, and the 

remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect at the same extent as would have been the case 

had such invalid or unenforceable provision or portion never been a part hereof. 

No amendment, modification, supplement, termination, consent or waiver of any provision of this 

Agreement, nor consent to any departure herefrom, will in any event be effective unless the same is in 

writing and is signed by the party against whom enforcement of the same is sought.  Any waiver of any 

provision of this Agreement and any consent to any departure from the terms of any provision of this 

Agreement is to be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which given. 

The parties hereby represent, covenant and warrant that all actions necessary will have been 

obtained and that they will have been authorized to enter into this Agreement and that no additional action 

will be necessary by them in order to make this Agreement legally binding upon them in all respects.   

This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties with respect to the subject 

matter hereof and shall become a binding and enforceable Agreement among the parties hereto upon the 

full and complete execution and unconditional delivery of this Agreement by all parties hereto.   

This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties are to be governed by and construed 

and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Missouri. 



12241117.1 

This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all 

of which when taken together shall constitute one instrument. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first 

above written. 

COUNTY OF FRANKLIN, MISSOURI   CITY OF UNION, MISSOURI   
 
 
 
By: _________________________   By: _________________________ 
 Tim Brinker, Presiding Commissioner   Rodney (Rod) J. Tappe, Mayor 
 
 
 
Seal:       Seal:  
 
Attest: _________________________    _________________________ 
 Tim Baker, County Clerk    Jonita Copeland, City Clerk 



DWG. NO:

PROJ. NO:

SCALE:

DATE:

DWN. BY: APP'D. BY:

D
A

T
E

:
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
:

·
C

iv
il 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g

·
La

nd
 S

ur
ve

yi
ng

·
A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e

·
Si

te
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

·
M

as
te

r P
la

nn
in

g
·

G
en

er
al

 C
on

su
lti

ng

P
R
E
L
IM
IN
A
R
Y

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

U
N

IO
N

 E
X

P
R

E
SS

W
A

Y
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 U
N

IO
N

 &
 F

R
A

N
K

L
IN

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
U

A
L

 P
L

A
N

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 U

N
IO

N
, M

IS
SO

U
R

I

E
X

H
IB

IT
 1

X-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD COUNTY FARM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD SMELTER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION EXPRESSWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHWAY 47

AutoCAD SHX Text
PETERS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHWAY 47

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION EXPRESSWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHWAY 50

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHWAY 50

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
737 RUDDER ROAD FENTON, MISSOURI 63026

AutoCAD SHX Text
314-842-4033 (tel.) 314-842-5957 (fax) www.cochraneng.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY NUMBER - 2007006937 LAND SURVEYING CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY NUMBER - 2007004529

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE PROFESSIONAL'S SEAL AFFIXED TO  PROFESSIONAL'S SEAL AFFIXED TO PROFESSIONAL'S SEAL AFFIXED TO  SEAL AFFIXED TO SEAL AFFIXED TO  AFFIXED TO AFFIXED TO  TO TO THIS SHEET APPLIES ONLY TO ITEMS  SHEET APPLIES ONLY TO ITEMS SHEET APPLIES ONLY TO ITEMS  APPLIES ONLY TO ITEMS APPLIES ONLY TO ITEMS  ONLY TO ITEMS ONLY TO ITEMS  TO ITEMS TO ITEMS  ITEMS ITEMS ON THIS SHEET. ALL DRAWINGS OR  THIS SHEET. ALL DRAWINGS OR THIS SHEET. ALL DRAWINGS OR  SHEET. ALL DRAWINGS OR SHEET. ALL DRAWINGS OR  ALL DRAWINGS OR ALL DRAWINGS OR  DRAWINGS OR DRAWINGS OR  OR OR OTHER DOCUMENTS NOT EXHIBITING  DOCUMENTS NOT EXHIBITING DOCUMENTS NOT EXHIBITING  NOT EXHIBITING NOT EXHIBITING  EXHIBITING EXHIBITING THIS SEAL SHALL NOT BE CONSIDERED  SEAL SHALL NOT BE CONSIDERED SEAL SHALL NOT BE CONSIDERED  SHALL NOT BE CONSIDERED SHALL NOT BE CONSIDERED  NOT BE CONSIDERED NOT BE CONSIDERED  BE CONSIDERED BE CONSIDERED  CONSIDERED CONSIDERED PREPARED BY THIS PROFESSIONAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.R.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.B.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEP. 2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 300'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SC19-1021

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOURBEUSE RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAT CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAT CREEK


	I. Call to Order
	II. Minutes Approval
	1. September 19, 2019
	2. September 26, 2019
	3. September 26, 2019
	September 30, 2019
	October 1, 2019
	October 3, 2019
	October 3, 2019

	III. Public Request for Discussion/Action
	IV. Action Items
	a. 2019-414 Proclamation - Domestic Violence Awareness Month
	b. 2019-415 Setting and Lowering Speed Limits
	c. 2019-416 Reporting and Releasing Unclaimed Property
	2019-417 Removing Parcel from Tax Roll
	2019-418 Appointment to P&Z
	2019-419 Grant for the Blueprint for Roadway Safety Campaign
	2019-420 Purchasing 120 Acres in Washington County
	2019-421 Awarding Bid for Storm Sewer Installation
	2019-422 Bid for Schoeneberg Road
	2019-423 Purchase of an Excavator for Highway Department
	2019-424 License Agreement with NovaStor Backup Server Software
	2019-425 Awarding Bid for Processing Annual Tax Statements and Reports
	2019-426 Kronos Agreement
	2019-427 Consent Agenda
	2019-428 Intergovernmental Agreement Hwy 47 Project

	V. Discussion Items and Reports
	VI. Adjournment

